Lancashire Association of Local Councils 9 Ambleside Avenue, Euxton, PR7 6NX T: 01772 750900 E: office@lalc.org.uk



CONSTITUTION

Note: All references to Local Councils and serving councillors in member parishes means and includes parish councils, town councils, community councils, neighbourhood councils, village councils and parish meetings.

Lancashire Association of Local Council's may be referred to as LALC.

Clause 1 Name and Membership

LALC shall consist of Local Councils in Lancashire, Merseyside and Greater Manchester.

By virtue of membership of LALC, councils have membership of the National Association of Local Councils (NALC).

Clause 2 Objectives

The aims and objectives of LALC are to take all such steps as may be necessary or desirable in the interest of councils consistent with the objectives of NALC which are:

- 2.1 To protect and represent the interests, rights, functions, and privileges of member councils
- 2.2 To assist members in the performance of their duties and to promote and develop the social cultural and recreational wellbeing of their local areas
- 2.3 To promote a widespread and well-informed interest in local councils
- 2.4 To promote good practice in local councils.
- 2.5 To promote high standards through good quality training

Clause 3 Annual General Meeting (AGM)

- 3.1 There shall be an AGM of the LALC. Every member council shall appoint and be represented by the persons indicated in Appendix one of this constitution.
 - A person appointed under this sub-clause to represent a member council shall not be appointed as a representative by any other member council nor be entitled to vote on behalf of that other council.
 - The President, Vice-Presidents, Treasurer and co-opted members shall be non-voting members of the general meeting unless they are voting on behalf of their council.
- 3.2 The accountant shall attend as an ex-officio member at the AGM, but shall not be eligible to vote.
- 3.3 The AGM shall be held in November. The Chair shall arrange for each member council, every ex-officio and co-opted member to receive notice of the meeting not less than 35 working days prior.

The notice will include:

- · date, time and place of the meeting
- invitation to nominate
- · a copy of the accounts for the preceding year

Clause 4 Subscriptions

Each member council shall pay to LALC on or before 1st July in each financial year ending 31st March, a subscription which shall be based upon the number of electors for the member councils and the scale of subscriptions shall be based on the budget agreed by the AGM.

Clause 5 President, Vice-Presidents, Treasurer & Accountants

- 5.1 There shall be a President, and such number of Vice-Presidents as may from time to time be determined by the Annual General Meeting (AGM).
- 5.2 Nominations for the positions of President, Vice-President, Treasurer and Accountant shall be sent to the Secretary 10 working days before the AGM. Following this, the completed nomination forms will be sent out to members with the agenda five days before the AGM.
- 5.3 The President shall preside at AGM, or in their absence the AGM shall appoint a Vice-President to preside.
- 5.4 Each position holder shall hold office until the following AGM.
- 5.5 Treasurer shall be elected at the AGM annually.
- 5.6 The accountants shall be appointed annually at the AGM.
- 5.7 Vacancies in any of the said offices may be filled by the Executive Committee.

Clause 6 Extraordinary General Meetings

Extraordinary General Meetings, of which not less than 15 working days' notice shall be given to each member council stating the objects of the meeting, may be called at any time by:

- i. The Executive Committee
- ii. The Chief Officer after the receipt of a requisition in writing signed by not less than one tenth of member councils.

Clause 7 Proceedings for Annual/Extra Ordinary General Meetings

See Appendix 3

The quorum at an Annual/Extraordinary General meeting shall be twelve member councils. If at an Annual/Extraordinary General Meeting no quorum is present within half an hour of the time appointed for the commencement of business, the meeting shall stand adjourned, to a time and place nominated by the Chief Officer.

Clause 8 Area Committee

8.1 The Annual General Meeting (AGM) may establish Area committees for areas consisting of one or more districts as it may deem necessary. The membership of each such committee shall include all the member councils within its area,

- and each member council shall be entitled to appoint two representatives, one of whom may be the clerk, to its Area committee (see appendix 2).
- 8.2 Subject to the terms of this Constitution the functions of Area Committees may be varied from time to time by the AGM.
- 8.3 Subject to the directions of the AGM each Area Committee may arrange its own business and procedure and may appoint such officers as it may deem necessary. A copy of the minutes of the proceedings of an Area Committee shall be forwarded to LALC.
- 8.4 Area Committees may submit Motions to the AGM and Extraordinary General Meetings of LALC in accordance with the timescales and rules set out in this Constitution.
- 8.5 The AGM may arrange for the Executive Committee of the LALC to carry out the functions of an Area Committee under this clause.
- 8.6 The Chair of the Area Committee shall be an elected council member

Clause 9 LALC Executive Committee

- 9.1 There shall be a LALC Executive Committee comprising:
 - i. The President and Treasurer by virtue of their offices.
 - ii. The number of councillors appointed by each Area Committee according to the table in Appendix 2.
 - iii. A named deputy may be appointed by each Area Committee.
- 9.2 The LALC Executive Committee may co-opt any person, who will be non-voting and not more than 3 additional members. The number of such additional members shall not exceed one quarter of the total membership of the Committee. Such members will hold office until the next AGM.
- 9.3 Casual vacancies on the Executive committee shall be filled:
 - in the case of persons appointed by an Area Committee, by that committee
 - ii. in the case of other persons, by the Executive Committee itself.
- 9.4 The Executive committee may appoint such working groups as deemed necessary, which may include members of the general meeting.
- 9.5 A quorum of the Executive Committee shall be 10 members

Clause 10 Chair, Vice Chair and Treasurer

The Association Executive Committee shall, at its first meeting in each year after the AGM, appoint for the forthcoming year a Chair and a Vice-Chair.

The Chair and Vice-Chair shall respectively be eligible for annual re-election, except that no person shall hold the office of Chair for more than three consecutive years.

The Chair shall take the chair at committees whenever they are present. The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in their absence. If at any meeting the Chair and the Vice-Chair are absent, the committee shall elect a chair for that meeting from among their number.

Clause 11 Sub-Committees/Working Groups

- 11.1 The Executive Committee shall have powers
 - to appoint any other sub-committee/working group deemed necessary which may include members of member councils other than members of the Executive Committee
 - ii to make rules for the transaction of its business
 - iii. to delegate any of its functions to such sub-committees. The Chair or Vice-Chair of the committee shall be ex-officio members of the sub-committee.
- 11.2 There shall be a Finance and Management Committee (F&M) appointed by the Executive Committee. See appendix 5 for the role and functions of the Finance and Management sub-committee.

Clause 12 Place and Notice of Meeting

The Secretary shall give to every person entitled to receive the same notification, not less than seven working days' notice in writing of the time and place of meetings of the Executive Committee or of any sub-committee or working group, specifying in such notice the business to be transacted.

Clause 13 Functions of the Executive Committee

Subject to the provisions of this constitution, the Executive Committee may provide for the conduct, management, control and administration of the affairs of LALC and may take such steps, incur such expenses, acquire and dispose of such property, enter any commitments or arrangements and employ such staff as may be suitable for carrying the policy of LALC into effect.

Clause 14 Voting (except AGM/EGM)

At all meetings every resolution will be determined by a show of hands except when a recorded ballot is requested by a minimum of one fifth of those present.

Clause 15 Expenses of Representatives and Members

The necessary travelling, subsistence and other incidental expenses of representatives or members attending meetings of NALC, of LALC (other than the AGM), of the Executive Committee and of any sub-committees or working groups thereof, may be met wholly or partly from the funds of the LALC.

Clause 16 Resignation from Membership

Any member council wishing to terminate its membership of LALC may do so by sending its resignation in writing to the Chief Officer by the last working day in September of any year; that resignation is to be accompanied by a copy of the corresponding Minute recording the resolution of the member council.

The resignation will take effect on 1st April of the following year.

Failure to issue notice of resignation will render each council liable for the subscription for the following year.

Clause 17 Alterations of Constitution

Any amendment to this constitution must be made at an Annual/Extraordinary General Meeting and approved by not less than two-thirds of the persons present and voting.

No amendment shall be made which is inconsistent with the current constitution adopted by NALC and any such amendment shall be subject to the approval of the NALC.

Notice of any motion for such amendment other than a notice given pursuant to a resolution of the LALC Executive Committee, must be given in writing to the Chief Officer of LALC not less than eight weeks before the meeting, and a copy of every such notice, including those given pursuant to a resolution of the LALC Executive committee, shall be sent by them to every member council and to each ex- officio and co-opted member of the General meeting, at least 35 working days before the meeting at which it is to be considered.

Clause 18 Dissolution of the Association

In the event of the dissolution of the Association, any remaining assets after the payment of outstanding debts and return of any grants shall be distributed among members of the Association in proportion to the subscription paid in the year of dissolution.

Amendments:

This Constitution was adopted at the AGM held on 3rd November 2007.

Amended in 2010.

Amended November 2011.

Amended in 2019

Amended in 2022

Reviewed and amended 2025